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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Keshava Plantations Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying finandial statements of Keshava Plantations Private Limited (“the Company”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31" 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow Statement for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”} in the manner so required and give
a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS"} and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, and its loss, total
camprehensive Income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
saction 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Qur responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Financial Statement.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The ether informaticn
comprises the information included in the Board's Report including annexure to the Board's Report & other
Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report therean,

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial ctatements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the
preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (In AS) specified under
section 133 of the Act read with (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters refated to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do s0.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion,
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accardance with
sAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
cansidered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

» |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our apinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting fram
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act 2013, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such contraols.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadeguate, to modify our opinion. Refer to paragraph “material
uncertainty related to going concern” abowve in respect to our reporting in respect to going concern
appropriateness. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern,



JKVS & CO

RN s 11 A

Chartered Accountants

=  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it
probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and
in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies [Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 {"the Order"}, issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section [11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3}) of the Act, we report that:

(a} We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

{b) In our opinion, proper books of account as reguired by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

{c] The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

{d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended
from time to time;

(e} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2] of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company with
reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure B” to this report;

(g} The Company has not paid/ provided for managerial remuneration during the year.

(h) With respect to the other rnatters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

I sharle ;_J_i’J 1l
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i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

i.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses;

ii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For JKVS & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.318086E

(Utsav Saraf)
Partner
Membership No. 306932
UDIN:- 20306932AAAAAWES2T

Place: Kolkata
Date: 23" June, 2020
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ANNEXURE=-A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of our
Report to the members of Keshava Plantations Private Limited of even date)

We report that
1. In respect of Company’s fixed assets:

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation
of fixed assets.

(o) The Fixed Assets have not been physically verified by the management during the year under report.

(c] As informed to us, the title deed of the Immovable properties as disclosed under ‘Note’ on Property, Plant &
Equipment to the Financial Statement are held in the name of the Company. We have, however not verified the
title deeds.

Il. The Inventories have been physically verified by the Management during the year. In our opinion, the frequency of
verification is reasonable. No material discrepancies were noted on physical verification of inventory as compared
to book records.

Il In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, The Company has not granted any
loan to parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, Thus, paragraph
3(ili} of the Order is not applicable.

IV. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any
loans or investments during the year. The Company has neither issued any guarantee nor has provided any
security on behalf of any party.

V. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given toa us, The Company has rot accepted any
deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act 2012 and the rules framed there under.

VI. The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of any cost records under Section 148 (1) of The
Company Act, 2013.

VIl. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of cur examination of the records of
the Company,

{a) the Company is generally regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues including provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income tax, Goods and Service Tax, cess and other material statutory dues
during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities and no such dues were in arrears, as at 31st
March, 2020 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us,
there are no dues of taxes and cess which have not been deposited on account of dispute.

VIIl. Based on our audit procedures and on the basis of information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to any bank. The Company has no outstanding
loan from Government or any outstanding debentures.

IX, The Company did not raise any money by way of Initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments), however short term loans raised during the year have been utilized for the purpose for which they
were raised.

b Oy
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X. According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company by its
officers ar employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

¥l. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has neither paid nor provided for managerial remuneration during the year.

XIl. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a nidhi
company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

%I, According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act and details
of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

¥IV. According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year.

XV. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directers or persons connected with him,
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable. '

¥V, The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-14 of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

For JKVS & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 318086E

Ui S02eb
(Utsav Saraf)
Partner
Membership No. 306932
UDIN: 20306932AAAAAWEE2Y

Place: Kolkata
Date: 23" June, 2020
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ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of our Report to
the members of Keshava Plantations Private Limited of even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Keshava Plantations Private Limited (“the
Company”) as of 31st March 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended on that date.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential companents of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Cantrols over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based
on our audit, We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
aver Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by ICAl. Those Standards and the
Guidance MNote require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due te fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinien on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reparting includes those policies and procadures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reascnable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal finandal control over financial reporting may become Inadequate
because of changes in canditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

OPINION

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2020,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by ICAL

For JKVS & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 318086E

(Utsav Saraf)
Partner
Membership No. 306932
UDIN: 20306932 AAAAAWEE2T
Place: Kolkata
Date: 23" June, 2020



KESHAVA PLANTATIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN No. U01132A51959P TCODS666
BALAMCE SHEET as at 31st March, 2020

(T in Lakhs)
Note Mo. As at 315t March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019
ASSETS
1 NON-CURRENT ASSETS
a Property, Plant and Equipment 5 2,381.10 2,374.02
b Capital Work-In-Progress 50.91 1514
¢ Intangible Assets B 2.00 4.00
d Financial Assets
i Loans 7 26.23 16.23
iii  Other Financial Assets = e
e Other Non Current Assets 2.86
f Non-Current Tax Assets g8 12 56 2,475.66 £.58 2,450.97
2 CURRENT ASSETS
a Inventaries 9 47.28 BO.79
b 8lological Asset other than Bearer Plants 10 6.04
¢ Financial Aszets
| Trade Receivables 11 15.65 5,51
I Cash and Cash Equivalents 12 B.73 1.17
il Loans 7 1.22 0.63
iv Other Financial Assets 13 1.23 1.00
d Other Current Assets 14 96.45 170.57 11.26 110.40
Total Assats 2,646.23 2,561.37
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
a Equity Share Capital 15 80,00 EQ.00O
b Other Equity 16 1,262.83 1,342,585 1,403,655 1,483.65
LIABILITIES
1 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
a Financial Liabilities
I Borrowings 17 5.44 .
b Provisions 22 12749 110.87
¢ Deferred Tax Liabilities {Net) 18 150.85 283.82 181.74 29261
2 CURRENT LIABILITIES
a Financlal Liabilitles
i Borrowings 19 833149 BE47.48
i Trade Payables 0
Total outstanding dues of ereditars ta
miicra enterprises and small entarprises -
Total outstanding dues of creditor to other
than micro enterprises and small
enterprises 638.09 76.53
iii  Other Financial Liabilities 21 52.01 29.99
b Provisions 22 2352 17.87
¢ Dther Current Liahikties 23 42.05 1,019.56 1324 78511
Total Equity and Liabilities 2,646.23 2,561.37
Basis of preparation and presentation of 2
Significant Accounting Policies 3
Significant Judgements & Key Estimates a

The Nates are an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date annexed.

For and on behalf of
IKVSECO

Chanered Accountants

Firm Registration Mo, 31B086E

Usbory Soeag .
Utsav Saraf
[Partner)
Membershig Mo, 306932
Kolkata

P T BT, T R PR

Forand on behalf of Board of Directars

NS &
3‘{' L.uhoo

Chartered
\ ™ Accouptante ¥




KESHAVA PLANTATIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN No. UD1132AS51999PTCO05666
STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS for the year ended 31st March, 2020

INCOME
Revenue from Operations
Other Income
Total income

EXPENSES
Cost of Materials Consumed
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Stock-In-Trade and
Work-in-Progress
Employee Benefits Expense
Finance Costs
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense
Other Expenses
Total Expenses

Profit before Exceptional Items and Tax
Exceptional items
Profit before Tax
Tax Expense:
Current Tax
Deferred Tax
Profit for the year
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of the defined benefit plans
Income tax relating to these items
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year (Net of Tax)

Total Comprehensive Income for the period

Earnings Per Share

Basis of preparation and presentation of Financial Statement

Significant Accounting Policies
Significant Judgements & Key Estimates
The Notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date annexed.

For and cn behalf of
JEKVS&CO

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 318086E

Udsan Sousaly *
Utsav Saraf
(Partner)
Membership No. 306932
Kolkata

Dated: 23rd June, 2020 P

(T in Lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended
MNote No. 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
24 1,136.88 592.78
25 7.90 8.85
1,144.78 601.62
26 223.47 21.58
27
37.84 (23.57)
28 553.11 443 .84
29 89.97 60.38
30 107.54 111.72
31 29045 229.00
1,302.77 842.95
(157.99) (241.32)
(157.99) (241.32)
32
(27.30) {0.17)
{130.69) (241.15)
33
(13.66) (5.99)
3.55 1.56
(10.11) (4.43)
(140.80) (245.59)
34 (163.36) (301.44)
2
3
4

For and on behalf of Board of Directors



KESHAVA PLANTATIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN No. UD1132A51999PTC005666
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

b

{ T in Lakhs)
a) Equity Share Capital
Balance as at 315t March 2018 80.00
Add/(Less): Changes in Equity Share Capital during the year -
Balance as at 31st March 2019 80.00
Add/|Less): Changes In Equity Share Capltal during the year -
Balance as at 315t March 2020 £0.00
Other Equity
Particulars - MEsae foSmos ~ Total
Capital Reserve Retained Earnings

Balance as at 31st March, 2018 5.00 1,644.23 1,649.23
Profit for the year {241.15) (241.15)
Other Comprehensive Income (4.43) (4.43)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - (245.58) (245.58)
Balance as at 31st March, 2019 5.00 1,398.65 1,403.65
Profit for the year {130.69) {130.69)
Other Comprehensive Income (10.11) {10.11)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year . (140.80) {140.80)
Balance as at 31st March, 2020 5.00 1,257.85 1,262.85

The Motes are an integral part of the Financial Statements
As per our report of even date annexed,

For and on behalf of
JKVSE&CO

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Mo, 318086E

Udras Sosaf -
Utsav Saraf
{Partner)
Membership No. 305932
Kolkata
Dated: 23rd lune, 2020

o2

Accountants *

For and on behalf of Board of Directors




KESHAVA PLANTATIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 202() (¥in Lakhs )
Particulars 20a8-2020 20118-201%
Amounrt Armiount Amount Amount
A} |CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Frofit atter Exceptional Iems & before Tax {157.99) (241.32)
Adjustments for ;
Depreciation & Amortisation 10794 172
Interest Income (1.46) 1171)
Fair Valuation for Biological Assets other than bearer plant . {1.67)
Finance Coat 8997 60.38
Sunitry Crodit bal no longer required writlen back (0.32) {110)
Eemeasurement of post employment defined benelt obligation {1366 (5.99)
Loss on Sale/ Dhscard of Property , Plant and Equipment 433 253
Bad Debis & Provision for doubtul debts Advarees (Net) 042 157.22 - 164.16
Chperating Profit before working capital changes 20,23 {77.16)
Adfustments for
{Increase) Decrease in Trade Beceivables {614y 9945
({Increase)/ Decrease in Inventories 3955 {10,73)
{Increase)/ Decrease in Loans, Other Financial Assets & Ofher Assets {89.30) 349
Increase/ {Decrease) in Trade Pavables & Other Liability brhen | 4415
Increase/ {Docrease) in Prowvision 2299 {5.68) 9.22 5607
(Cash Generated from Operations 23,54 {21.09)
Direct Taxes (Paid)/ Refund received (MNet) {3.98) (D.23)
Met Cash from operating activities 15,56 {2132)
B) |CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Turchase of Tangble & mtangible Assets including CWIP /Capital Advances {130,12) {5011y
Sale of Tangible Assets - [ilE
Interest Recelved 146 236
Net cash used in Investing Activities (128.66) I {47.75)
(109.12) {69,07)
C} |[CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Mon Current Borrowings B.00 -
Repayments of Non Current Borrowings {79}
(Fepayments)/ Proceeds from Short Term / Other Borrowings 186.01 1243
Interest paid (76.5d) (6i.38)
Met Cash from/ {used in) Financing Activities 116.68 8,60
Met Increase/ {Decrease) in Cashand Cash Equivalents 7.56 (047
(Cash and Cash Equivalents - Opening Balance 117 1od
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Closing Balanee B.T73 1.17
Mates :

1 Cash and cash equivalents consists of cash on Hand and balances with banks in current / Cash Credit accounts as per tiote 2.12
Previous year's figures have been regrouped/ vearranged wherover necossary

'
-

3

Cash amd cash squivalents consists of:

Particulars 2019-2020 2015-2019
Cash em hand 121 .23
Bank Balance 7.52) LAY
Todl 8.73] 117

The above Cash Flows have been prepared under the Tndimece Method' as setourt in Indian Accounsing Standards (1N AS) 7 - Statement of Cash Flows

This is the Cash Flow Staternent relerred to in our report of even date

For and on behalf of

JEWSECOD
Chartered Accountants

Firrn Registration Mo, 31E086E

\MHaow Seoal ”

Utsaw Saraf

{Partner)

dembership No. 306932
Kolkata

Dated: 23rd lune, 2020

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Shosed Lopts

—




KESHAVA PLANTATIONSPRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31™ March, 2020

CORPORATE AND GENERAL INFORMATION

Keshava Plantations Private Limited was incorporated as a Private Limited Company in India under the Companies Act
1956. It is a wholly owned subsidiary of Joonktollee Tea & Industries Limited. Since 2016, the Company has been under
the management of the loonktollee Tea & Industries Limited. The Company’s principal business is manufacturing of Tea.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT

2.1.

2.2,

23.

24.

2.5,

Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS") as
prescribed by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”), read with the
Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended), other relevant provisions of the Act and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2020 has been approved by the Board of
Directors in their meeting held on 19%June, 2020.

Basis of Measurement
The Company maintains accounts on accrual basis following the historical cost convention, except for followings:

» Certain Financial Assets and Liabilities is measured at Fair value/ Amaortized cost (refer accounting policy regarding
financial instruments};

# Derivative Financial Instruments measured at fair value;

# Defined Benefit Plans — plan assets measured at fair value; and

# Biological Assets — At fair value |less cost to sell

Functional and Presentation Currency

The Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR), which is the functional currency of the Company and the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates. All financial information presented in INR
has been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the requirements of Schedule Iil, unless otherwise stated.

Use of Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with ind AS requires judgements, estimates and assumptions to be
made that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the
financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period, Difference between
the actual results and estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are known/ materialized.

Presentation of Financial Statements

The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss are prepared and presented in the format prescribed in the
Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”). The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and presented as
per the requirements of Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash flows”. The disclosure requirements with respect to items in the
Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss, as prescribed in the Schedule lil to the Act, are presented by way of notes
forming part of the financial statements along with the other notes required to be disclosed under the notified
Accounting Standards and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended).

. Operating Cycle for current and non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and
other criteria set out in the Schedule 11l to the Companies Act, 2013 and Ind AS 1.The Company has ascertained its
operating cycle as twelve manths for the purpose of current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

An asset is classified as current when it is:

Expected to be realized or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period. e

All the other assets are classified as non-current. //\ s o
I
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A liability is current when:

It is expected to be settled in normal operating eycle;

Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period,

YV YYVvY

The Company classifies all ather liabilities as non-current. Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities are classified as nen-current
assets and liabilities respectively,

Measurement of Fair Values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial
and non-financial assets and liabilities.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

* In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
# In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or a liability
is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the crcumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the assat or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

¥ Level 3 — Inputs which are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

5
F

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets & liabilities. Involverent of external valuers is decided by
the management of the company considering the requirements of Ind AS and selection criteria include market
knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained.

Recent Accounting Pronouncement- Standard issued but not yet effective
Ministry of corporate affairs (MCA) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards. There is no such
notification which would have been applicable from April 01, 2020.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1

A summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are as given below,
These accounting policies have been applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value (NRV). Cost is measured by including, unless
specifically mentioned below, cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
lacation and condition. NRV Is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

* Raw Materials: At Cost or Net Realizable Value whichever is lower. Cost of harvested tea leaves, produced from own
gardens, is measured at fair value less cost to sell at the point of harvest of tea leaves. Cost of other raw materials is
measured on weighted average basis,
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» Stores and Spare Parts: Stores and Spare Parts are measured at cost (measured at weighted average basis) or net
realizable value whichever is lower.

» Stock in Process: Is valued with material at lower of weighted average cost and market rate and estimated
conversion cost,

» Finished Goods:Finished goods produced from agricultural produce are valued at lower of cost and the net realizable
value. Cost is arrived at by adding the cost of conversion to the fair value of agricultural produce. Other finished
goods are measured at cost or NRV whichever is lower.

> Waste/ Scrap: Waste and Scrap (including tea waste) are valued at estimated realizable value,
3.2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, term deposits and other
short-term highly liquid investments, net of bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash
management. Bank overdrafts are shown within shart term borrowings in the balance sheet,

3.3. INCOME TAX

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses. Current and deferred tax is recognised in the statement of profit & loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case,
the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

3.3.1. Current Tax:

Current tax liabilities (or assets) for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be paid to
(recovered from) the taxation authorities using the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted, at the end of the reporting period.

3.3.2. Deferred Tax

# Deferred Tax assets and liabilities is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
assel is realized or the liability is settled based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

» Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes (i.e., tax base). Deferred
tax is also recognized for carry forward of unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

'\_'J'

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible tempaorary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilized.

¥ The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period. The Company reduces
the carrying amount of a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow the benefit of part or that entire deferred tax asset to be utilized, Any such reduction is
reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available.

» Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside the Statement of Profit and Loss is recognized either in other
comprehensive income ar in equity. Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction
either in OCl or directly in equity.

» Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets

against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the
Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

3.4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

3.4.1. Tangible Assets (Other than Bearer Plants)

3.4.1.1. Recognition and Measurement: /- o 1
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Property, plant and equipment held for use in the production orfand supply of goods or services, or for
administralive purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses (if any).

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment acquired comprises its purchase price, including import duties and
non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting any trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable costs of
bringing the assets to its working condition and location for its intended use and present value of any estimated cost
of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

In case of self-constructed assets, cost includes the costs of all materials used in construction, direct labour,
allocation of directly attributable overheads, directly attributable borrowing costs incurred in bringing the item to
working condition for its intended use, and estimated cost of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the
site on which it is located. The costs of testing whether the asset is functioning properly, after deducting the net
proceeds from selling items produced while bringing the asset to that location and condition are also added to the
cost of self-constructed assets.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted
for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Profit or loss arising on the disposal of property, plant and equipment are recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

3.4.1.2. Subsequent Measurement:

¥

¥

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the cost incurred will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced.

Major Inspection/ Repairs/ Overhauling expenses are recognized in the carrying amount of the item of property,
plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. Any Unamortized part of the
previously recognized expenses of similar nature is derecognized.

3.4.1.3. Depreciation and Amortization:

®

‘_‘."

Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment is provided under Written Down Methad at rates determined based
on the useful |ife of the respective assets and the residual values in accordance with Schedule Il of the Companies
Act, 2013 or as reassessed by the Company based on the technical evaluation.

In case of asset “Fences, wells, tube wells” & "Carpeted Roads — Other than RCC”, depreciation has been provided
on written down value method at the rates determined considering the useful lives of 15 years which is based on
assessment carried out by external valuers and the management believes that the useful lives as considered above
best represent the period over which the respective assets shall be expected in use.

In respect of spares for specific machinery, cost is amortized over the useful life of the related machinery as
estimated by the management,

Depreciation on additions (disposals) during the year is provided on a pro-rata basis I.e., from {up to} the date on
which asset is ready for use (disposed of].

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted If
appropriate.

3.4.1.4. Disposal of Assets

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

3.4.1.5. Capital Work in Progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost which includes expenses incurred during construction period, Interest an
amount borrowed for acquisition of qualifying assets and other expenses Incurred in connection with project
implementation in se far as such expenses relate to the period prior to the commencement of commercial praduction.

3.4.2, Bearer Plants
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3.4.2.1. Recognition and Measurement:

> Bearer Plants, comprising of mature tea bushes and shade trees are stated in the balance sheet at cost, less any

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses (if any).

# Cost of bearer plants includes the cost of uprooting, land development, rehabilitation, planting of Guatemala, planting

of shade trees, cost of nursery, drainage, manual cultivation, fertilizers, agro-chemicals, pruning and infilling etc.

3.4.2.2. Subsequent Measurement;

Costs incurred for infilling including block infilling are generally recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless
there is a significant increase in the yield of the sections, in which case such costs are capitalized and depreciated over the
remaining useful life of the respective sections.

3.4.2.3. Depreciation:

F

Depreciation on bearer plants is recognised so as to write off its cost over useful lives, using the straight-line
method.

The estimated useful life, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any change in estimate accounted for on a praspective basis,

The residual value in case of Bearer Plants has been considered as NIL.Estimated useful life of the bearer plants has
been determined as the following:
| Tea Bushes | 50 years |

3.4.2.4. Capital Work in Progress

Young tea bushes & shade trees, including the cost incurred for procurement of new seeds and maintenance of nurseries,
are carried at cost less any recognized impairment losses under capital work-in-progress. Cost includes the cost of land
preparation, new planting and maintenance of newly planted bushes until maturity. On maturity, these costs are
classified under bearer plants. Depreciation of bearer plants commence on maturity.

3.5, LEASES
The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract canveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

3.5.1. Company as lessor

B

b i

Finance Lease

Leases which effectively transfer to the lessee substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the
leased item are classified and accounted for as finance lease. Lease rental receipts are apportioned between the
finance income and capital repayment based on the implicit rate of return. Contingent rents are recognized as
revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Operating Lease

Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognized in income on a straight line basis
over the lease term unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to
compensate for the expected inflationary cost increases. The respective leased assets are included in the balance
sheet based on their nature.

3.5.2. Company as lessee

P

Finance Lease

Finance Leases, which effectively transfer to the lessee substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to
ownership of the leased item, are capitalized at the lower of the fair value and present value of the minimum lease
payments at the inception of the lease term and disclosed as leased assets. Lease Payments under such leases are
apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability based on the implicit rate of return.
Finance charges are charged directly to the statement of profit and loss. Lease management fees, legal charges and
other initial direct costs are capitalized,

If there Is no reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain the ownership by the end of lease term, capitalized
leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset or the lease term.
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# DOperating Lease

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term |eases
and leases of low value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use
assels representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i) Right-of-use Assets (ROU Assets)

The Company recagnizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease {i.e., the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any atcumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognized, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the
estimated useful lives of the assets,

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of 3
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assets are also
subject to impairment.

i} Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees, The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or
a rate are recognized as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs. In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is re-measured if there is a modification,
a change In the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an
index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset,

iii} Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of properties, machinery and
equipment (i.e. those leases that have a |ease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain
a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that are considered to be
low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognized as expense on a straight-
line basis aver the lease term.

3.6. REVENUE FROM CONTRACT WITH CUSTOMERS

Revenue is recognised based to the extent it is probable that the economic benefit will flow to the company and revenue
can be reliably measured regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment,and excludes taxes &
duties collected on behalf of the Governmentand is reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates and other similar
allowances.

3.6.1 Sale of Products:

Revenue from sale of products is recognized when the control on the goods have been transferred to the customer. The
performance obligation in case of sale of product is satisfied at a point in time i.e., when the material is shipped to the
customer or on delivery to the customer, as may be specified in the contract.

3.6.2 Rental Income
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Rental income from operating lease is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease unless the
payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the company’s expected
inflationary cost increases

3.6.3 Other Income:

3.7.
3.7.1,

3.7.2,

3.7.3.

Interest Income: For all debt instruments measured either at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVTOCI), interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where
appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend Income: Dividend income is accounted in the period in which the right to receive the same is established.

Other Income: Other items of income are accounted as and when the right to receive such income arises and it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company and the amount of income can be measured reliably.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Short Term Benefits

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related services
are provided. Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly
within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognized in
respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period.

Other Long Term Employee Benefits

The liabilities for leaves that are not expected to be settled wholly within twelve months are measured as the present
value of the expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the
reparting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the government securities (G-
Sec) at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of related obligation.
Remeasurements as the result of experience adjustment and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in
statement of profit and loss.

Post Employment Benefits
The Company operates the following post employment schemes:

# Defined Contribution Plan

3.8.

Defined contribution plans such as Provident Fund, Employee State Insurance etc. are charged to the statement of
profit and loss as and when incurred.

Defined Benefit Plans

The liability or asset recognized in the Balance Sheet in respect of defined benefit plans is the present value of the
defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The Company's net
obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods. The defined benefit obligation is calculated
annually by Actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The liability recognized for defined benefit plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting
date less the fair value of plan assets, together with adjustments for unrecognized actuarial gains or losses and past
service costs. The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit
obligation and the fair value of plan assets. The benefits are discounted using the government securities (G-Sec) at the
end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of related obligation.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit obligation, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan
assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling, are recognized in other comprehensive income.
Remeasurement recognized in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and will not
be reclassified to the statement of profit and loss,

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are recognised at their fair value, where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
an a systematic basis aver the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

o

b
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The grant relating to the acquisition/ construction of an item of property, plant and equipment are included in non-
current liabilities as deferred income and are credited to profit or loss on the same systematic basis as the respective
assets are depreciated over their expected life and are presented within other operating income.

3.9. FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

B

Fareign currency (other than the functional currency) transactions are translated into the functional currency using
the spot rates of exchanges at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rate of exchanges at the re porting date,

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities are generally recognized in profit or loss in the year in which they arise except for
exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for future productive use,
which are included in the cost of those qualifying assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on
those foreign currency borrowings, the balance is presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss within finance costs.

MNon monetary items are not retranslated at period end and are measured at historical cost (translated using the
exchange rate at the transaction date).

3.10. BORROWING COSTS

3.11.

3.11.1.

p

Borrowing Costs consists of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the barrowings of funds.
Borrowing costs also includes foreign exchange difference to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the barrowing
Costs,

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset are capitalized as a part of
the cost of that asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale.

Transaction costs in respect of long term borrowing are amortized over the tenure of respective loans using Effective
Interest Rate (EIR) method. All other borrowing costs are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets

»

Recognition and Initial Measurement:

All financial assets are initially recognized when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments. A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assat.

Classification and Subseguent Measurement:

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

o Measured at Amortized Cost;

o Measured at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FYTOCI);

o Measured at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL); and

o  Equity Instruments designated at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOC).

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company
changes its business model for managing financial assets.

© Measured at Amortized Cost: A debt instrument is measured at the amortized cost if both the following
conditions are met:
* The asset Is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows; and
* The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI} on the principal amount outstanding.

o
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After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method.Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance
income in the statement of profit or lass. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss.
This category generally applies to trade receivables, cash and bank balances, loans and other financial assets of
the company.

o Measured at FVTOC!: A debt instrument is measured at the FVTOCI if both the following conditions are met:
* The objective of the business model is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling the
financial assets; and
®*  The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI,

Debt instruments meeting these criteria are measured initially at fair value plus transaction costs. They are
subsequently measured at fair value with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognized in other
comprehensive income, except for impairment gains or losses and foreign exchange gains or losses. Interest
calculated using the effective interest method is recognized in the statement of profit and loss in investment
income.

o Measured at FVTPL: FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not
meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOC, is classified as FVTPL. In addition, the
company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOC! criteria, as
at FVTPL. Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the statement of profit and loss. Equity instruments which are, held for trading are classified as at
FVTPL.

o Equity Instruments designated at FVTOCI: For equity instruments, which has not been classified as FVTPL as
above, the company may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent
changes in the fair value. The company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis, The
classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. In case the company decides to classify an equity
instrument as at FVTOC, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the
OCl. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale of investment.

Derecognition:

The Company derecognizes a financial asset on trade date only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
asset to another entity.

Impairment of Financial Assets:

The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. Ind AS — 109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The company
recognizes impairment loss for trade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction using expected credit
loss model, which invelves use of a provision matrix constructed on the basis of historical credit loss experience. For
all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12 month expected credit
losses or at an amount equal to the life time expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition.

3.11.2. Financial Liabilities

Recognition and Initial Measurement:

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payabies or as derivatives, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recagnized initially at fair value and, in the case of
loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subseguent Measurement;

Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as FVTPL if it
is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities
at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in profit
or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate
method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and Iusses are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is also recognized in profit or loss. ===
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KESHAVA PLANTATIONSPRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2020

»  Derecognition:
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires,
Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insclvency or bankruptey of the counterparty.

Earnings Per Share

Basic Earnings per share (EPS) amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders
bythe weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by
dividing the profit attributable to equity holders adjusted for the effects of potentialequity shares by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted averagenumber of equity shares that
would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. An asset is
treated as impaired when the carrying cost of the asset exceeds its recoverable value being higher of value in use and net
selling price. Value in use is computed at net present value of cash flow expected over the balance useful lives of the
assels. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows fram other assets or group of assets {Cash
Generating Units — CGU).

An impairment loss is recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which an asset is
identified as impaired. The impairment loss recognized in earlier accounting period is reversed if there has been an
improvement in recoverable amount.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Provisions

Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event and it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the
balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognized as finance cost.

Contingent Liabilities

Cantingent liability is a possible obligation arising from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company
or a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because it is not possible that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefit will be required to settle the obligations or reliable estimate of the amount of the
ohbligations cannot be made. The Company discloses the existence of contingent liabilities in Other Notes to Financial
Statements.

Contingent Assets

Contingent assets usually arise from unplanned or other unexpected events that give rise to the possibility of an inflow of
economic benefits. Contingent Assets are not recognized though are disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is
probable.

Non-Current Assets held for sale

Mon-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the asset (or
disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary

e —
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KESHAVA PLANTATIONSPRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2020
for sales of such asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly probable. Management must be committed to the sale,
which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell. Non-current assets are not depreciated or amortised.

Intangible Assets

Recognition and Measurement

Software which is not an integral part of related hardware, is treated as intangible asset and are stated at cost on initial
recognition and subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulatedimpairment loss, If any.

Subsequent Expenditure

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount, only when it is probable that future ecanomic benefits
assoclated with the cost incurred will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably, All other
expenditure is recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

Amortization
# Intangible assets are amortized over a period of five years.

» The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed at least at the end of each financial year. If the
expected useful life of the assets is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortization period is
changed accordingly.

Intangible Assets under Development

Intangible Assets under development is stated at cost which includes expenses incurred in connection with development
of Intangible Assets in so far as such expenses relate to the period prior to the getting the assets ready for use.

Biological Assets and Agricultural Produce
Biological Assets

Biological assets of the company comprise of un-harvested green tea leaves and other minor produce are measured at
fair value less cost of sales. The gain or loss arising from a change in fair value less cost to sell of biclogical assets is
included in Staternent of Profit and Loss for the period in which it arises.

Agricultural Produce

Agricultural produce harvested from the Company’s biological assets are valued at fair value less cost to sell at the point
of harvest, A gain or loss arising on initial recognition of agricultural produce at fair value less cost to sell shall be included
in Statement of Profit & Loss for the period in which it arises.

Operating Segment

Operating segments are reported in @ manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker of the Company is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments andaccordingly is identified as the chief operating decision maker.

The Company has identified single reporting segment i.e. tea.

SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. Information about Significant judgements and Key sources of estimation made in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is included
in the following notes:

> Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets: The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an

assessment of the probability of the Company’s future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be

utilized. In addition, significant judgement is required in assessing the impact of any legal or economic limits.
=
S & T

ﬂ‘- L_lb B ot "\.:\
AL TR o v



Y

p
i

v

KESHAVA PLANTATIONSPRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2020

Useful lives of depreciable/ amortisable assets (tangible and intangible}: Management reviews its estimate of the

useful lives of depreciable/ amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets.
Uncertainties in these estimates relate to actual normal wear and tear that may change the utllity of plant and
equipment.

Classification of Leases: The Company enters into leasing arrangements for various assets. The classification of the
leasing arrangement as a finance lease or operating lease is based on an assessment of several factors, including, but
not limited to, transfer of ownership of leased asset at end of lease term, lessee’s option to purchase and estimated
certainty of exercise of such aption, proportion of lease term to the asset’s economic life, propartion of present value of
minimum lease payments to fair value of leased asset and extent of specialized nature of the leased asset.

Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO): Employee benefit obligations are measured on the basis of actuarial assumptions
which include mortality and withdrawal rates as well as assumptions concerning future developments in discount rates,
medical cost trends, anticipation of future salary increases and the inflation rate. The Company considers that the
assumptions used to measure its obligations are appropriate. However, any changes in these assumptions may have a
material impact on the resulting calculations,

Provisions and Contingencies:The assessments undertaken in recognising provisions and contingencies have been
made in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (ind AS) 37, "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets’. The evaluation of the likelihood of the contingent events is applied best judgement by management regarding
the probability of exposure to potential loss.

Impairment of Financial Assets:The Company reviews its carrying value of investments carried at amortized cost
annually, or more frequently when there is indication of impairment. If recoverable amount is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is accounted far.

Allowances for Doubtful Debts: The Company makes allowances for doubtful debts through appropriate estimations of
irrecoverable amount. The identification of doubtful debts requires use of judgment and estimates. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value of the trade and other
receivables and doubtful debts expenses in the period in which such estimate has been changed.

Fair value measurement of financial Instruments:When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is
measured using valuation technigues including the Discounted Cash Flow model. The input to these models are taken
from observable markets where possible, but where this not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing
fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility,

Fair Value of Biological Assets and Agricultural Produce:The fair value of Biological Assets and Agricultural Produce is

determined based on recent transactions entered into with third parties or available market price. Fair valuation of
Biological Asset and Agriculture Produce are based on the market rates published by the industrial body for various
grades from which the fair value of Biological asset and Agriculture Produce are derived.

Uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19:

The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 on the
carrying amounts of receivables, projects work- in -progress and inventories including biological assets. In developing
the assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in the global economic conditions because of this
pandemic, the Company, as at the date of approval of these financial statements has used internal and external sources
of information including credit reports and related information, economic forecasts. The Company has performed
sensitivity analysis on the assumptions used and based on current estimates expects the carrying amount of these
assets will be recovered. The impact of COVID-19 on the Company's financial statements may differ from that estimated
as at the date of approval of these financial statements.
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KESHAVA PLANTATHOINS PRIVATE LIMITED:
0N Na. UELIIZASII9IPTCOISEEE
Mates ta Financial Statements as oo and for the year ended 31st March, 2080

T in Lakls]
Fefer Mot leon Current Current
Ne L As a1 s ot Ag 8t
d st March 2020 I1st March 2019 st March 2020 32st March 2018
LOANE
Sacurity Dopealt
Secured, cansidened good 26.2% 6.5 . =
2623 262 - e
Dthar Loans and A e, 2 Eood unbess
otherwiie mentioned
Loan [ Advance o Employess - - L2z a3
LI2 e
Tetal Loarg 26,23 6.d3 122 0.63
S S ==

Na Laans s due from directons or other officers of the company elther sevesally or jointly with any other person, nor any lean are due from frms or arivale tompanies respectasly Inowhich sny directar is s partner, a
dhrecton or a member.

As ot Asat
st March 2020 3151 March 2019
ROM CLRAENT TAN ASSETS (NET)
Advance Incame Tax & TOS 1256 8.58
1256 2.58
Hs ot Azat
152 March 2020 3151 Marech 2018
INVENTORES
{45 valuad and certified by the Managemnent]
Finichad Goods 15 15,64 53.48
Stores ardd Spares {net of absoieice] LG4 731
47.18 an.74
Rafar nate ra 36 for infarmation on inventoniss pledgod a5 securities by the Company.
LR 1 Az at

st March 3020 315t March 2610

Béobogicol Asset other than Boarer Plant

Riclngical feset ather than Basres Mant z 8.04
- a.08
Reder Note s ar Ay at
o, - 31et Manch 2020 3151 Masrch 2019
TRADE RECENABLES
Tiade Rec=vabies 15465 9.51
Less: Loss A lowance =
Total Trade Recelvabieg 1565 950

Break Up of Securlty Details

Trado Kecaivabias congdered good-Sedured s .
Trade Receivables censidered good-Unsecurad 1565 9,51
Trade Rocelvables which have significant increase in credit risk . i
Trade Receivables- crodit impaired - -
Total 1565 9,51
Loss Allewanoe g 2
Total Trads Racalvabies 1565 9,51
Bsat Arat
31st March 2030 31t March 2019
CiSH AND CASH EQUWALENTS
Balanoes With Banks -
in Current Account 152 .69
Cath in Hand 131 0.28
IE] 117
Ak 3t Ag 5t
Flst March 2020 315t March 2119
DTHERS FINANDIAL ASSETS
Depesit with Nabard nsy 57
DOithers Recaivable AE 04z

121 1.00




KESHAVA PLANTATHINS PARVATE LIMITED
OIN Na. UBLLIZASIS90PTOI0SEES
MNotes 1o Finandal Statements as on and for the year ended 315t March, 2020

T in Lakhs)
Mon Corrent Current
ARat AL at Byt Agat
F1st March 2020 318 March 2008 151 Manch 2020 315t March J019
14 OTHER CLIRREMT ASSETE
Capital Achiznices 3.0
Adwances othar than Cagital Advances
Arvances 10 Supiars & Service Providers 7451 141
Balances with Gowernment & Statutary Autharties 186 . 187 138
Prapaid Expenses in T
Total Othar Currant Aszats 286 - 56.35 11.26
Ag at 31t March 2020 As &t 3151 Mareh 2019
Hao. of Shares Amaunt Na. of Shares Amaunt
15 EOUITY SHARE CARITAL
15.1 Autharised Skare Capitai
Equity Shares:
Ordinary Shares of A5 1000 &ach 1,000 0K 00 10000 1,00, D00, 03 hlwiduid
1,00,000.00 100,00 1,00,000,00 100,00
152 |ssued Share Caplial
Crdinary Shares of A5, 100/~ each 0,000,040 E0.00 £0.000.00 E0.03
80,000.00 BOLOO A0,000,00 HO,O0
153 Subscribed and Pald-wp Share Capital
Gedinary Shares of RE. 100/- each fully paid-up £0,000.00 0.0 80,0010, 00 E0.0%
£0,000.00 80,00 A0,000,00 B0.00
154 mecencillstion of the number af thares at the Beginning ind ot the ead of the year

Thare has been no changed mowements In numberof shares cutstanding at the beginnlng and at the end of the year
Terms) Rights sttached to Fquliy Shares :

The Company has only one classof {ssued shares |a, Ordinary Shares hasing par vaiog of ks, 100/- par shara, Each holder of Ordinary Shares is entitiad 1o one vate par share and squal right for didend. I the awant
of ligquidatipn, the erdinary shasehoiders are aliginle 1 receive the ramaining Besets of the Compary after payment af all preferemtial smounls, in pregartion to their tharehalding.

156 Sharehalding Fattemn with respect of Holding or Ultimate Hobding Company
Ertire sharekoiing of the company is hild by MJS. Joanktoles Tea & indistries Limited [Helding Company)
157 Details of Equity Shareholders hoiding more than 5% shares i the Company
A5 Al Zlst Morch 2020 s at 31s1 March 2019
Mo, of Shares % Halding Ko, of Shares % Walding
Crdinary Shares of © 19/~ each fully paid
Isankbelles Tea & industries Limlted and & naminges 80,000 10 80,000 100%
15,8 Mo ofginany shares hiue besn riserved for s wndsr optans and cantractsf commitments for the sale of sharesf disnvestment as 3t the Balanse Sheet date.
159 Mo Ordimary Shares bave been bought back by the Comgany during the period of 5 years preceding the date a5-ak which the Balance Shoet i3 propared.
15180 Mo secarities corwertible into Fguity! Preference shares have beon isseed by the Company during tha vear,
1581 Mo calls are unpaid by any Director or Officer of the Company during the year.
fafer Note s at As at
M, 3ist March 2090 31stMarch 2019
6 OTHER EQLATY
Capial Reserve 16.1 3om 00
Retained Earmings 16.2 135785 130865
1, IS 1,403 65
al
Capital reserve represents a sesounce oreated by socumulsted capial surphis gnd remains invested in the business for setalf agains any capital expendituse. This will nat be distributed as dvidends.
bl #etained Earnings: Reminad earings repoesent scewmalatad profits earned by the Company 8t remaining undistributed a5 on date
As ot Asal

3Lst March 2020 305t March 2019

161 Capital Ressrue
Balarce ot the beginming and ot the end of the yes 5.00 5.00
162  Retained Earnings
Betance at the begirning of tha year 1 39HES 164403
Add: Othar Camprahonsive Incame arising from remoasurement of
defined benafit obligation fnet of fas) {10.11) [4.43)
Add: Proflt for tha year {130.69) [24115)
Balance &t the end af the year 1.2597.85 1.358.65
Other Equity 1,262,585 1,403.65
Non-Current Currert Maturities
As ot As et Aa at A5 Bt
31 March 2020 Fst hMarch 2019 3151 Manch 2030 3z March 2015
17 BORROWINGS
Term Laan fram ather Financial Institution 544 1.76
5.44 176 3

17.1 vahsic Loan from Mahandra apd Mahindra Financial Serdces Limited payabie in ramaining 41 instalmants of RE0.32 faes incuding interacy @ 7.80%
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CIM Mo, UHM132ASTIPAPTOONSE66S
Motes to Financial Statements as on and for the year ended 315t March, 2030

(T n Lakhs)
Az an Agat
Tit Masch 2030 F1st March 2019
DEFERAED TAX LIABILITIES |MET]
Oeferred Tax Uabilities
Artsing on soesunt of ;
Arogerty, Plant & Eguipments & intangible Assets 110.05 23351
219,08 233,51
Less: Deferred Tax Adtels
Ariging on sccount of
Suetuar 438 of IncomE-tax ALt .15 83
Unrabsored Deprectation/ Carrlad Foraard Busingss Lasses 1 35.01 pra
&H. 16 5177
Belerred Tax Liabilitees (Net) LE0.A% EB1.74

The recognition of deferred tx zcset on unabéorbed depreciation) butiness losses has been restricted 1o the actent of deferred taw lability on accourt of timing dilference in respeat of depreciation, the reversal of

whieh 1s wirually ceriain

Mowement in tax asset and deferred tax liabiities during the year ended 315t March, 2000
P Raengnirad in Reengaited in Othar i
Bt ay 2ux April, 2018 Lﬂ:'”"'h" = ImcomE ot Aarch, 2030

Daturred Ingome Tax Liabdlites
Promerty, Plant & Eguipments & Intangibles Asseta 13352 (1447} 21905

3352 114.57) = 219.05
Diefemed Income Tax Asseis
e s £38 o tha Incomea Tax Act, 1951 18.83 432 - 3315
Ursbsgrbed Depraciation Carrad Forwand Budires Leoel 12,09 1207 3501

5177 1635 = EH.16

Deterred Tax Assets and Defened Tax Liabilities hive been offset wherever the Comuaany has o legely enfarceable right to sell aff current tax sssets agsinst curnent tax liatilities ard whese the deferred tox 3siets and

daferred tax laibilities mlate to income tax levied by the same taxetion autharity.

st Az at

CLRAENT BORAOWINGS —3isttarch 2090  Jistilarch 2009
Secuned
‘Working Cagital loans rapayable an damand
Fram Feders® Bank Lirmited 191 13199 1T A%
From Glager Limited 118z 3G0.00
Unsecwrad
Frarm Haldng Comaany (repayatle on demand) - T
83348 647 45

Datails of Securlty Given for Loan

‘Working capital loan from Bank & secured by squitabla mortgage of Azizoagh Tea Estate and also by way of hypathecation of standing tea crop, ten in proceds, [nished res in factory ete. and boak dabes of the

cornciny. The same caseles Interest @ 8.60% p.a.
Serured by second charge by way of mortgage of fzirhagh Toa Estate alongwith standing tea crop, bulidings and plant and machineny The FAMME CaTrying intarest @ 12% p.a.
frfier nota na. 34 far Information on the carmying amounts of financial and nar-financsl essets pledged as seourity far current barrowings.

Aot Asat
315t March 2020 3ist March 2010

TRADE PAYABLES

Trado Payadles far goods and services
Total outstanding dues of craditars ta micro enterprises and small antarprices

Ga.08 7653

TeAad aitstonding dues of creditar to athér than migrs enterprises and amall enterprises
G8.09 76.53
ere L
s at As at
31st hMarch 2000 31st March 3019
OTHER CURRENT FENANCHLL LIARIEITIES
Emalopee Retated Liabiing .07 2959
Cutrent Maturity of Lang Term Barrawings 176
Amaunt Payable for Capital Mems 138
Interest Acorued and due an Barrowings 1343
Others 4,57
£2.01 19.9%
Mon Cunrent Current
As At AE BE Af At A at
315t March 2020 Alct March 2019 315t Moreh 2020 315t March 2019
PROVIFIDNS
Prowhsion for Emiplovee Benefits
Gratuity 12749 110.87 - -
Banis - - FERF] 1787
127.49 110.87 23,52 17.87




EESHAVA PLANTATICNS PRIVATE LIMITED
CiN Mo, UDL13ZAST1599PTCO0SEGS
Hotes ta Financlal Statements os-on and for the year oaded 315 Mareh, 2020

[¥ in Lakhs)
Adal Az at
31st March 2020 313t March 2009
13 OTHER CURAENT LLABILITEES
Statutory Duss Payable 1257 10,45
Adiyraces Recaved from Customers 2.0 .78
4205 13.24

Foa the year ended  For the year onded
31t March 2020 315t March 2019

14 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Eale of Firished Goods L 13662 59178
1,136.62 552.78
Deher Operaling Revenues
Incentives & Subsidies =
Irsurance and Other Clalms {Nat) : 025 -
filr.d] -
113888 592,78

Fortheyear endasl  Fer the year ended
F1st March 2020 31st March 2019

25 OTHER INCOME

Interest Income st amartised cost
O Ceposiis 146 1Lmn

Dther Non Oparating Incoms

Exgess Uabilities 3ad Unciaimed Balances wrilten back n3z tin
Miscoiane s Inco me 12 437
Changes in Fair value of Blokgical assets - Lé7

7.90 EB.E5

26 COST OF MATERLALS CONSUMED

For the year ended  For the year ended
215 March 2020 1t March 2019

Furchase of Groan Leaf 123.47 2158

Forthe year énded  For the year ended
3Lt Manch 2020 3se March 2018

27 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, 5TOCK-IN-TRADE AND WORK-IN-PROGRESS

niventories at the end of tha year
Tea 15.65 LR
15.65 5348
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Tea 534 2991
53.48 29.91
37,84 {2357}

For the year ended  For the vear ended

315 March 2030 313t March 2015
25 EMPLOYEE BENEFTS ERPENSE IS =SS
Salaries & Wages a47.83 35433
Cantribution to Pravident Fends and Othary 33,33 4158
Contribution to Gratuity Fund 16,45 14,51
S1aif Welfare Esperises A5 3958
562,65 45012
Less: dhmaunt Capltalized 9,54 5,38
55311 49384

For thoyear emded  For the year ended
F51 March 2020 21st March 1010

23 FINAMCE COST

Imtarest Expenses
Ta Banks On Warking Capital Luans 3010 20.86
On Corparate Loans & Others 4555 270
To Holding Compsaay 1104 28.22
uher Barrawing Costs
(e Finanial Charges 4.3 1.03
5063 50.54
Less: Amaut Capltalisad 29,10 085 .46
B9.57 B0.38

3.1 Noam: Tha capitalisatien rate used o determine the smount of barmawing Costs 1o be capitaiised is the waighted average interest rats apalicabile to the antity's general barrawings during the year, in this case 10.44%
{32at Wanch, 2016 - 12,933,




30 DEPRECIATION AND AMOKRTIZATION EXFENSES

On Property, Plant and Eouipment
O Intangible Assets

31 OTHER ENPENSES
Mariufacturing Expenses

Stares, Spare Parts & Packing Materials Condismed

Prver & Fusl
Cultivations

Repas to Buddings
Aepairs to Bdachinery
Aepairs to Othar Assacs

Less Amaunt Capialised

Selling and Sdministration Expensas
Fralght & Camage
Comwnission , Brakerage & Dicount
Rames B Taxes
Rt
Insurance
ehicle Rsning & Maintenance Exponse
Auditar Remunecation -

sudit Fees

Loas on sale/Discard of Froperty, Slamt and Equipmant

Changes in Fair valua of Blological aesets
Bad Dabt fdvances written off
Trawalling Expanses

Déracter Sitting Fees

Ot MisceBaneis Fxpenses

31 TAKEMPENSE

Current Tax
Deferred Tax

32,1 Reconciatan of estimated Income L expans 31 SEITULeY INCOME L0 FALE LG iNCOME tax eponse siparted n statement of Total Comprehensive Incdme

Prafit betare moome tax expanse
Statwtory Income Tax rate®
Estimated incama Tax Expansa

KESHAVA PLANTATIONS FRIVATE LIMITED
CIN Ma. LDL1I2A5EF99PTC00 5566
Hates o Financal Statemants a3 on and for the year endad 31st March, 2020

Tiwr effect of odfusrments te reconcile expected Noere [ox axpeass to

FEPITE INCOUTHE [N Sxpenis

Dug to Defersed tax on business lasses not considered

Deferred Tax/WAT Crodis Entltlement
Cehers

Income tax espense in Statement of Profit & Loss

* Apolicable Statutory Income Tax rate for Fiscal Year 20000 s 269 & 2019 s 26%

33 OTHER COMPRCHINSIVE iBCOME
ltems that will ot be redlassified 1o profit or loss

Ramessummant af the defined bencdit plars
Less: Tax axponse on the abave

4 Earning per Shares

Neninal Walue of Equity Shares (s}

Frofit attributed va the Eguity shargholgers of the Company

‘Weighted average number of equity shares
Basis and dinited garning per sharas |As,)

Thereere na dilutive egquity shares in the Company

{7 in Lakhs)
For the yearended  For the yoar anded
315t March 2020 3181 March 2019
1955 1me.72
200 200
107.94 111.72
Far the year andad  For the year anded
315t Morch 2020 T2st March 2018
1904 1262
Q065 TLEE
7158 6650
1038 (% 1]
13st 1008
132 02l
73 158.15
.54 247
216.33 165,67
222 536
il 350
150 1336
1.5 1.1
¥ ral 144
1745 1270
157 034
433 15%
Bid
D42 .
0is T
(il E) nEn
2234 2168
422 6333
230,45 219.00
Far the yeor ended  For the year ended
A1t March 2020 3Lst March 2029
12730 feam
{27.30) 18.17)
Bdat March 2020 st March 2018
[157.59) (24132
026 .36
{41.08) (6274}
(18,359} 1801}
{27.30) 10.37)
.61 (54 58}
[41.08} 163 74}
0.0c) 600
For the yeas ended  Far the year ended
315t March 2020 31t March 2019
13.66 (5.94]
[2.55) 156
10.11 |4.43)
0.1 [4.43)
100,00 100,00
{130.69) [241.35)
00,000 80,000
[163.35) [301.44)
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KESHAVA PLANTATIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN No. UD1131A51350PTCO05666
Notes to Financial Statements as on and for the year ended 315t March, 2020

(T in Lakhs)
Contingent Liabilities, Cantingent Assets & Commitment
The Company does not have any Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assats.
Commitments
As at Az
51, No, Particulars s ki
31" March 2020 31" March 2019

i Estimated amount of contracts remakning ta be execuled on Capital Account (net of

’ advances| 14.86 28.76
Assets pledged as security
The cerrying amounts of assets pledged as security for current & non-current borrowings are as follows:

As at As at
Particudars Refer Note Mo = "
31" March 2020 31" hMarch 2019

Currant
Financial assots 15.65 9.51
First and Second charge
Trade Receivables 11 15.65 2.51
Non-financial assets 47.28 80.79
First and Second charge
Inventories 9 4728 80.7%
Total current assets pledged 25 security 62.93 90,30
Non-curre
First and Second charge
Property, Plant & Equipments 5 243201 241216
Total non-currents assets pledged as security 2,432.01 241216
Total assets pledged as security 2,494,94 2,502.46

Disclosure as raguirad under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises development act, 2006, to the extent ascortained, and
dth September, 2015

as per notification number G5R 679 (E) dated

5l Mo. Particulars

As at As at
31" March 2020 31" march 2019

| The principal amaunt and the interast due thereon remaining unpaid to any suppller st the end of each financial
yaar,

1 The amaunt of intersst pald by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment made ta the supplier beyord the appointed day
during each accounting year.,

il The amaunt of interest due and payshle for the period of defay in making payment but without adding the
interast specified under the Micro, Small ond Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

=

Tha amount of interest accrued and remasning urpald at the end of each acoounting year

W The amount of further interest remalning due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the
interest dues above are actually paid to the small eaterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible
expenditure under saction 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Diselosure pursuant to Indian Accounting Standard - 19 ‘Employes Banefits’

Defined Contribution Plan:

Tha Cempany makes contribution tewards provident fusd 1o a defined contribution retirement plan for qualifying emplovees. The Provident fund plan Is operated by statutory
authorlties. Under the said scheme the company k& required to contribute a specific percentage of pay roll costs in respect of eligible emplovess to the retirement benefit

scheme to fund the benefits,

The amaunt recognized as an expense for the Defined Contribution Plans are as under:

For the year ended
51. No. Particulars 31st March 2020

For tha year ended
31st March 2018

a Provident Fund 53.53

41.50
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23.2.1

38.2.2

3E23

35.2.4

3825

38.2.6

38,27

38.2.8

Defined Benefit Plan:
The following are the types of defined benefit plans
Gratuity Plan

The Company rmakes annual contribution of gratuity to gratuity funds duly constituted and administered by indapendent trusteas and funded with Life fsurance Corporation of
India/ Independenl trust for the qualifying employees. The scheme provides for a lump sum paymeant to vested employees upon retirement, death while in employment or on
termimation of employment of an amount eguivalent 1o 15 days salary payable for each completed year of service. Vesting occurs wpon completion of § years of continuous

SErViCE

The present value of defined obligation and related current cost are measured using the projected unit credit method with actuzrnial valuation being carried out at each balanta

shesat date

Risk Exposure

Through its defined benefit plans, the company is exposed to a number of risks, the maost significant of which are detaited bolow:

Interast rate risk The defined benafit obligation calculated uses a discount rate based on government bonds, If bond yields fall, the defined
benefit obligation with tend to increase.

Salary Infiation rigk Higher than expected intreases in salary will increase the defined benefit obligation,

Demographic risk Thie is the risk of veriability of results due to unsystematic natre of decrements that mclude mertality, withdrawal,
disability and retirement. The effect of these decrements on the defined benefit obligation Is not stralght forward and
depends upon the combination of salary ineresse, discount rate and vesting criteria. It is important not to overstate)
withdrawals because in the financial analysis the retirement benefit of a short career employes typically costs less per year
as compare to long service employes.

Recondiliation of the net defined banefit [asset)/ lability {(Tin lacs)
The following table show's & reconclliztion from the opening balances to the dosing balances for the net defined benefit {asset]/ liabitity and its components:
Particulars Sobilty
20153-20 2018-1%
Net defined bencfit asset/ (liability) at the beginning of the year [110.87) [101.37)
Service Cost 18.65) [7.23)
et interest on net definad benefit (liabilitg) /asset [7.81) {7.28)
Amount recognised in OO {1366} [5.99)
Employer contributions 13,50 11.00
Ket defined benefit asset/{liability) at the end of the year 1127.49) {11087}
Reconciiiation of Defined Benefit Obligations
The foliowing takie shows a reconciliation to defined benafits obligations:
{¥in lacs)
Particulars Sratuity
20189-20 2018-19
Defined Benefit Obligation at the beginning of the yoar 113,33 106,96
Current Service Cost 865 7.23
Interest Cost on the defined benefit obligation 811 751
Curtailment (Cradit]/ Cost - -
Setttement |Credit)/ Cost - -
Past Service cost- plan amendments - -
Acquisitions {Credit) Cast = =
Actuarial (gain)/loss-experience 3.00 5.78
Actuarial {gain) locs -demographic assumptions = -
Actuarial {gainl/loss-financial assumptions 0.73 104
Benefits paid directly by the Company - .
Benefits paid from plan assets [10.43) [16.1%)
Defined Benefit Dbligation at the end of the year 132,39 11333
Recanciliation of the Plan Assets
The following tatle shows & reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for the Flan Assets and its componants:
Particulars Sty
2015-20 2018-18
Falr Value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year 2.46 555
Interest Income on Plan Assets 0,30 023
Return on plan assets greater! (lesser) than discount rate {0.93) 183
Employer Contributicns 13.50 11.00
Banefits Paid {10.43) {1619}
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year 2490 245
Expenses recognized In profit ar loss
Particulars Bty
2019-20 2018-19
Current Service Cost 8.65 723
Interest Cost 3.11 T.51
Interast Income on Plan Assets 0.30 .23
Remeaseremats racognzied in other comprehansive income
Gratulty
RN 201920 201819
Actuarial |gain}/ Loss on defined benefit obligation 12,73 T8
Return an plan assets greater/ {lesser) than discount rate [0.93} 183

Major Categories of Plan Assets

The Gratuity Schema Is invested In a Group Unit Linked Gratuity Plan managed by Life Insurance Corporation of india and the independent Administered Gratulty Fund. The
information on the allocations of fund managed by Ufe Insurance Corporation of india into major assets claszes and expected return on each major classes are not readify

avpilable. The expected rate of return on plan assets is based an the assumed rate of return provided by Company's actuary.




3829 Actuarial Assumptions

. Gratuity
Particuiars 2015-20 2018-19
Financial Assumptions
Digcaunt Rate 670 750
Salary Escalation Rate .00 6,00
Demegraphic Assumptions
Martality Rate Inclian Assured Lives | ingian Assured Lives
Martafity (2006-08) | Mortality (2006-08)
Uit LIt
Withdrawal Rate
BAgefrom 20-10 | 2.00% | Age from 20-40; 2.00%
Age froam £0-50 © 1,00% | Age from 40-60 : §,002%

38.2.10 The estimates of future salary increases, considerad in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, senlarity, promation and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand
in the employment market

38.2.11 At 31st March 2020, the welghted average duration of the defined benafit obligation was § years {previous year B years). The distribution of the timing of benefits paymeant Le.,
the maturity analysis of the benefit payments s as follows:

|Amount |n lacs)
2018-2020 201B-2019

Expacted benefits pay for the year ending on Gratuity Gratuity
Within 1 year 140 3.588
1-2 Year 277 7.38
1-3 Year 17.69 5.47
-4 Year 742 16,51
4-5 Year 2r.40 752
5-9 Years &7.99 Th4n

38.2.12 The Company expects ta contribute T NIL (previous year 3 13,50,000) to its gratuity fusd in 202021
38.2.13 Sensitivity Analysis
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation ag a result of reasonable changes in key

assumptions occuring at the end of the reporting period. Reasonably possible changes at the reporting datz 1o one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other
assumptions constant, veould have affected the defined benafit obligation by the amounts shown Belaw:

Gratuity
Particulars 201920 2018.19
Effect on DAO due 1o 1% increase in Dlscount Rate {11.98] {975
Effect on DBO due to 1% decrease In Discount Rate 14.07 11.39
Effect on DBO due to 1% increase in Salary Escalation Rate 14.03 1146
Effect on DBEC due to 1% decrease in Salary Escalation Rate [12.17) (9.97)

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, It does provide an approximatien of the sensitivity of the assumptions
shown.

39 Related Party Disclosures
33.1  Name of the related parties and description of relationship
Holding Company

= Jnonktollee Tea & Industries Limitad (Holding Company|
- The Cochin Malabsr Estates And Industries Limited (Associate of Holding Company)
- Pranav Infradey Co Pyt Limited (Fellow Subsidiary

33.2  Summery of transactions with the related parties

Particulars Holding Company Associate of Halding Company
31.03.2020 31.08.2019 31.03.2020 21.03.2019

Loan Taken 120,00 35000 - -
Loan refunded 450.00 ¥20.00 -
Advance [given]/taken (75,00} = 28.00 .
Interost Expense 1100 28.22 - -
Sale of Tea 5.40 7.54 - =
Sale of Plant/Manure 174
Purchase of Green Leaf 22347 21.58 - -
Service Charges Expense Including GST 21198
Senvice Charges Income - 409 - .
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Summary of Closing Balance Outstanding with the related parties

Particulats Holding Company Associate of Holding Company
31.03.2020 31.03.2019 31.03.2020 31.03.2018

Loan Taken - 330.00 -

Advance Given o958

Advance Taken - 28.00 .

Major terms and conditions of transactions with related parties
Transactions with related parties are carried ot in the normal course of business &nd are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions.

Loans from Holding Company are unsecured and repayable on demand. interest rate is 11%,

segment Reporting

Dperating segments are defined as components of an enterprise for which discrete financial information s avallable that is evalyated regularly by the chief operating decision
miaker, in deciding how to allocate resources and assessing performance. Doerating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief oparating decision maker, Based on the management approach as defined in Ind A5 108, the Chief Operating Decision Maker evaluates the Company's performance based

on only one segment L& manufacturing Tea,

Fair Value Measurement

Categories of Financial Assets & Financial Liabdities as at 31st March 2020 and 315t March 2019

31st March 2020 31st March 2015
Particulars i
FYTRL Amaortized L Amartized
Cost Cost
Financial Assets
Trade Receivables 1565 .51
Cash and Cash Equivalents &73 117
Loans to Employess 1232 062
security Deposits 2633 2633
Other Financlal Assets 123 1.00
Total Financial Assets - - 53.05 - - 38.54
Fimancial Lizbilities
Brrrawings #38.93 B47.48
Trade Payakies 68.09 TE.53
Other Fnancial Libilities 52.01 29.59
Total Financial Liabilities . - 955,02 = = 753.59
Fair Values of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities measured at Amaortised Cost
The faliowing s the comparison by ciass of the carrying smounts and fair value of the Company's financial instruments that are measured at amortized cost:
31st March 2020 315t March 2019
Particulars ~
Carrying Amount| Fair Value Carrying Amount Falr Value
Financial Assets
Trade Aeceivables 15.65 i5.65 5.51 551
Cash and Cash Equivalents L] 873 L7 117
Loans ta Employees 122 122 0.53 063
Security Deposits 16.23 1623 2623 2523
Othar Financial Assets 1.23 1.23 1.00 100
Total Finandial Assets 53.05 53.05 38,54 38.54
Financial Liabilitias
Borrowings E38.53 B38.93 bav.48 BAT A8
Trage Payables 6E.09 B6E.09 76.53 T6.53
Other Financial Libllities 52.01 5201 29.99 19,99
Total Financial Liabilities 950,02 5958.02 753.58 753.89

The management ascessed that the fair values of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, short term borrowings, and other financial liabilities
appraximates their carrying amounts largely due to the short-tarm maturities of these instruments,

The management considers that the carrying amounts of Financial assets and Financlal llabilites recognised at nominal cost/amortised cost In the Financlal statements

approsimate thelr fair values,

Nom current borrowings has been contracted at floating rates of interest, which ara reset at short Intervals, Fair value of floating interest rate barrawings approximates their
carrying value subject to adjustments made for transaction cost.

Fair Value Hierarchy
Biological assets ather than bearer plants

Thig section explaing the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the biological assets other than bearer plants that are recognised and reasured at
fair value In the financial statements. The Company uses a Valuation technigue that s appropréate in the crcumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
tha fair value, maximising the usa of relevant observable inputs,

Biological Assets measured at Fair Valus hess cost to sell

As at 315t March 2020 and 315t March 2019

particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2018
Lewil 1 Lewvel 2 Lewel 3 Leval 1 Level 2 Level 3
Mon Financial Assets
Biotogical Astels other than Bearer Plant
- Unharwested Tea Leaf - - = 5.04 =
Total Non Financial Assets| - - - 6,04 -




43.2

During the vear ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 there are no transfers between level 1, level 2 and hewel 3,

43.21 Valuation Technique

4a

441

Unharvested Tea Leaf: Fair value is being arrived at based on the observable market prices of made tea adiusted for manufacturing costs. The same is applied on quantity of the
ted leaves unharvested using plucking averages of various estates,

Explanation to the fair value hierarchy

The Company measures Financial instrumants, such as, equity investments and nen financial Instruments, such as, unharvested tea leaf and timber plantation, at fair wafue at
each regorting date, Fair value i the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid 1o transfer a liabitity in an ordarty transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or dischosed in the financlal statements are categorised within the Fair value higrarchy based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole. The valuation of equity instrumants are based on level 3 Inputs and valuation of unharvested tea
leaf and timbes glantation are based on level 2 inputs as per the hizrarchy mentioned In the Accounting Policies.

Financial Risk Managemant

Financial management of the Company has bean receiving attention of the tep management of the Company, The management eonsiders finance 43 the Nifeline of the business
and therefore, financlal management is carried cut meticulously on the basis of detalled management information systems and reparts 3t periodical Intervals extending from
dalty reports ta long-term plans. Importance is laid on Nguldity and working capital management with a view to reduce over-dependence on borrowings and reduction in
interest cost. Various kinds of financial risks and their mitigation plans are as follows:

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations leading to financial loss. The Company has an established cradit policy and 3 credit review mechanism, Cradit
espuiure is undertaken onfy with large reputed business houses and with no history of default against payments, The Company has used a practical expedience by computing
the expectad credit losses matrix which has taken Inte account histerical credit loss experience based an which no expected credit [ass risk has been estimated.

Liguidity Risk
Thes Company determines its liguidity requirement in the short, medium and lang term. This is dane by drawings up cash forecast for short term and long term needs,

The Company mzanage Its liquidity risk in @ manner so as to meet its normal finencial obligations without any significant defay or stress. Such risk is managed through ensuring
operational cash flow while at the same time maintaining adequate cash snd cash equivalent position. The management has arranged for diversified funding sources and
adopted & policy of managing assets with liquidity monitering future cash flow and fiquidity on @ regular basis. Surplus funds not immadiately required are invested in and fixed
deposit which provide flesibility to liquidate. Besides, it generally has certain undrawn credit facilities which £an be assessed as and when reguired; such cregit facilities are
reviewed at regular basis

Miaturity Analysis for financial liabilities
The fallowing are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 315t March 2020
h:
Parfioumes On Demand I.a;s:x o ﬁma::‘:to . 1 years to 5 years More than 5 years Total

Borrowings

Term Logn from other financial institution 085 061 E.44 7.21

Working Capltal koans repovable en demand £33.49 B33.48
Trade payables 63.09 G6B.09
Dthet financial liabilities 2561 24,65 50,25

Total 859.10 53.58 0491 5.44 B59.03

The fallowing are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabiities as at 315t March 2019

Less than & Emonthsto 1

Particulars On Demand i s 1yearsto5years | More than 5 years Total
Borrowings
Working Capital loans repayable on demand BA7.A8 54748
Trade payables 76.53 653
Other finarcial liabilities %594 29.99
Total B47.48 106.51 753.8%

The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and Include contractusl interast payments and esclude the impact of netting agreements [if any). The interest payments on variable
intarest rate Inans in the tables above reflect market forward Interest rates at the respective reporting dates and these amounts may change as market interest rates change.
Encept for these financlal liabilities, it is not expected that cash flows Included in the moturity analysis could occur significantly sarlier, or at significantly different amaunts.
When the amount payable & not fixed, the amouwnt distlosed has been datermined with reference to conditions existing at the reporting date.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash Nlows of a financial instrument will fluctuste because of changes in market prices, The Company’s business primarlly
agricultural In rature, exposes It to the fisk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of adverse weather conditions and lack of
future markets. The Company closely manitors the changes in market conditions and select the sales strategies to mitigate its exposurs to risk.Market risk comprises twe type o
risks: Interast Rate Risk and Commodity Risk.



34,31 Commodity Risk

Cuftivetion of tea being an agricultural activity, these are certain specific financial risks. These financial risks arise mainly due to adverse weather conditions, logisthic protlems
inherant ko remote areas, and fluctuastion of selling price of finished goods viz, tea, coffee and rubber due to Increase in supply/availakality,

The Company manages the ahove financial risks In the foliowing mannes:

i) Sufficient inventary levels of chermicals, fertifisers ond other nputs are maintained so that timely comractive action can be taken (n case of adverse weather conditions.

il} Sightiy higher level of consumable stores viz. packing materials, coal and HS0 are maintained in order to mitigate financial risk arising from logistice problems,

1K} Sufficient working-capitai-facility is obtalned from banks in such & way that cultivation, manufacture and sale of tea is not adversely affected even in times of adverse
conditions

4432 interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is-the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of & financial nstrurment will Aucteate because of changes in market rates. The company's exposure to the risk
of changes in market interest rate relates primarily 1o company's berowing with floating interast rates. The Campany do not have any sEnificant interast rata nsk an its current
borrowing due to their short tenure.

The Campany is also exposed to interest rate risk on surplus funds parked (n loans. To manage such nsks, such Inans are granted for short durations with fied (nterest rata in
line with the expected business requiremeants for such funds.

#44.33 Currency Risk
The Company has no exposere Lo foreign exchange during the financial year. There were no foreign exchange derivative contracts dealt by the Company.
45 Capital Management

The Company objective to manage its capital is to ensure continuity of business while at the sama time provide reasonabde returns to Its various stakeholders butl keep
associated costs under control, In order 1o achieve this, requirement of capltal s reviewed perlodically with reference to operating and business plans that take into account
capital expanditure and strategic Investments. Sourcing of capital is done through judicious combination of equity/mtermal sceruals and berrowings, Both shodt term and lang
term. Net debt (total barrowings less cash and cash equivalents] to eguity ratio s used to monltor capizal.

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Net Debt g40.69 64748
Total Equity 134285 1,483 65
Wet Debt to Equity Ratio 0.63 0.44

46  Miscellancous Expenditure includes revenue expenditure on research and development Re, 1,42 lacs (2019: Rs, 1,50 lacs) ingurred towards subscription to Tea Research
Association

47  The wage agreements with workers in Assam are under negotiation. interim wage increase has been announced in Assam and the besic wige has been incréased by As 30/-. In
abgence of final agreemant, the wages have been sccounted for on the basis of interim order for the period from March, 2018 to July, 2018,

48  The Company's management befieves that it has taken into consideration all the possible impact of known events til the date of approval of its financial statements arising from
COVID-19 pandemic in the preparation of the financial results. BManagement s of the view thal considering the nature of it business operations, edsting customer and supplier
relationships @nd its market position, impact on its business operation, if any, arising from COVID-19 pandemic is not expected to be significant in relation to financial
statements prepared. The actual outcome of these assumptions and estimates may vary in future due to impact of pandemic,

49 Previous yesr figures have been rogrouped / rearranged wherever necessary, to confirm to the current period's classification,

The Motes are an integral part of the Financial Statements
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